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1. Introduction

The Tribunal received responding submissions from three individuals in support of retaining the
ancestor Thomas Lagarde dit St. Jean (RIN #11565) on the Schedule of Algonquin Ancestors.
The submissions are posted on the Tribunal’s website at:
https://www.tanakiwin.com/tribunal/thomas-lagarde-dit-st-jean/

They appear on the website as:
e Document 2 —Initial Submission by D. Scott.
e Document 3 — Initial Submissions made by L. Clouthier on behalf of Lagarde Carriere
line. It was dated February 22, 2023.
e Documents 5.1 to 5.9 — Initial Submissions made by D. Chaput. This submission is in nine
parts.

All three submissions are responding to the Enrolment Officer’s Report which appears on the
Tribunal website as:
e Document 1 —Enrolment Officer’s Report Regarding Ancestor Thomas Lagarde dit St.
Jean. It was dated December 2022.

This reply report addresses the content of the responding submissions that are relevant to the
Tribunal’s inquiry, which is to determine whether Thomas Lagarde dit St. Jean is identified in a
historic record or document dated on or before December 31, 1921, in such a way that it would
be reasonable to conclude that he was considered to be an Algonquin or Nipissing, or a sibling
of such a person. A “sibling of such a person” means a person with a common Algonquin
parent.

The Clouthier and Chaput responding submissions refer to some documents and facts that are
contained in the Enrolment Officer’s Report (posted as Document 1). As noted in the Enrolment
Officer’s Report, archival documents recording a family’s life events have been assigned ALG
document numbers; RIN numbers have been assigned to individuals discussed in the report to
aid in identification. RIN numbers, ALG numbers and/or page numbers of existing reports will
be referenced in this report for ease of discussion. New documents referenced in this reply
reports are listed in Appendix A and attached to Appendix B. Documents supplied by the
Respondents are attached to their submissions.

2. Document #2 - Initial Submission by D. Scott

The Respondent D. Scott supplied a photograph of Sophie St. Jean (born 1830) and her spouse
Francis Xavier Turcotte with their daughter and grandchildren. Sophie St. Jean was the daughter
of subject ancestor Thomas Lagarde dit St. Jean and his spouse Sophie Emilie Carriere dite
Jammes.

The Enrolment Officer has no comment on family photographs.


https://www.tanakiwin.com/tribunal/thomas-lagarde-dit-st-jean/
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The Respondent submitted a copy of the decision made by Justice Chadwick in 2013. The
Enrolment Officer has no comment on the 2013 decision.

The Special Resolution passed by the Algonquin Negotiation Representatives Resolution on
April 20, 2021 (Motion 20210420-01) guides the work of the Tribunal. It specifies in section 77
that: “Any matter brought to the Tribunal for determination shall be heard and be determined
as a new proceeding, but this does not preclude the Tribunal from considering decisions made
by other decision-making bodies including with respect to past enrolment processes.”

3. Document #3 — Initial Submission by L. Clouthier

The Respondent L. Clouthier submitted a report to the Tribunal in support of retaining Thomas

Lagarde dit St. Jean (RIN #11565) on the Schedule of Ancestors. The submission was sent under
cover of a letter dated February 22, 2023 with a 66-page report that includes explanatory text,

family statements and memoirs, and some supporting genealogical summaries with supporting
documents.

The submission addresses both Thomas Lagarde dit St. Jean (RIN #11565) and his spouse Emilie
Sophie Carriere (RIN #11566). This reply report comments on the content that applies to
ancestor Thomas Lagarde dit St. Jean. The content related to Sophie Emilie Carriére is
addressed in a separate report.

The Enrolment Officer comments on the content of the submission that is within the purview of
the Enrolment Officer to address and is germane to the issues before the Tribunal. The issues
raised by the Respondent are organized into sub-sections. Some individuals discussed by the
Respondent are identified by RIN numbers for ease of identification.

3.1 Respondent’s Introduction (Respondent’s page 2)

The Respondent notes that no document has been located that specifically names Thomas
Lagarde dit St. Jean (RIN #11565) as Algonquin. The descendants wish to challenge the basis of
Tribunal’s assignment and request that this challenge be brought to the attention of the
“governing body of the AOO for consideration.”

The Enrolment Officer has no comment on this request.

3.2 Part One: Thomas St. Jean dit Lagarde and Emilie Sophie Carriére and Descendants
(Respondent’s pages 2 to 5)

The Respondent states that the descendants met the criteria of the Proposed Beneficiary
Criteria (PBC). The Tribunal was established after the PBC had been applied. The issue before
the Tribunal is whether or not Thomas Lagarde dit St. Jean meets the definition of Algonquin
Ancestor and, hence is, properly included on the Schedule of Ancestors. Being a lineal
descendant of an Algonquin Ancestor is a required element of meeting the PBC.
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The Respondent enumerated several points to support the statement that the descendants of
the subject ancestor “believe they have Algonquin heritage and identity” (respondent’s
emphasis). The Enrolment Officer comments on only those points within her purview.

e The Respondent noted that the family lived in the Ottawa Valley settlement area for
hundreds of years. The Enrolment Officer’s Report (posted as Document 1) notes in
section E.3 that prior to 1845, the Carriére-Lagarde family lived in St. Eustache, Quebec
where the majority of their children were baptized.

e The Respondent noted, among other points, that: the Carriere-Lagarde family lived in
community with people of French and Algonquin origins; had intimate knowledge of the
land; increased their level of remunerative work as the area become settled; and forged
connections through mutual support, resource harvesting activities, religious
connection, and lifestyle. The Enrolment Officer has no basis upon which to substantiate
this statement in comparison to other Indigenous or non-Indigenous or families living in
the area at the time.

e The Respondent stated that the majority of Lagarde/Carriére descendants have more
than one Algonquin ancestor. According to the Enrolment records, of those descendants
of the married couple Thomas Lagarde and Sophie Carriere who meet the Proposed
Beneficiary Criteria (PBC), approximately 70% rely solely on Lagarde/Carriere and had no
other known Algonquin ancestor(s).

3.3 Part Two: Lagarde/Carriére Descendants Would Like to Expand the Conversation
(Respondent’s pages 5 to 8)

The Enrolment Officer has no comments on this section which addresses the nature of the
treaty process and nation building.

3.4 Supplementary Documents (Respondent’s pages 9 to 19)

The Respondent discussed a number of documents/issues under sub-headings a) to i), which
will be commented on under the same sub-headings.

3.4.a Lagarde-St Jean Defense, Emmett Godin, January 2023

Mr. Godin described the life of Alexina Marie Turcotte and Emmett Godin Sr., grandmother and
father of Emmett Godin, including their connection to Algonquins and their life at Black Bay
near Petawawa. The family lineage is documented in Enrolment records as described.

The Enrolment Officer has no comments on family oral history. Mr. Godin is a descendant of
the Lagarde-Carriere couple through his paternal grandmother Alexina Marie Turcotte who was
a great-granddaughter of Thomas Lagarde and Sophie Carriere.

3.4.b Family History Submitted by Ronald Romain Sr.

Mr. Romain identified his immediate ancestors as Olivier Paquette (great-grandfather), Xavier
Paquette (grandfather), and Alexina Paquette (mother) and their life at Black Bay, including
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resource harvesting in the area and working in Algonquin Park. This family intermarried with
descendants of Sophie Carriere and Thomas Lagarde in 1889. The Paquette line is under review
by the Tribunal.

The Enrolment Officer has no comments on family oral history.

3.4.c Jane Lagassie

Ms. Lagassie provided photos of five generations of the Lagassie, Biossonette, Landry/Boyer,
and Turcotte women and listed details of six generation up to her link with the Lagarde/Carriére
ancestors. The generations are documented in Enrolment records as described. A newspaper
article describes the resource harvesting and personal memoirs of her great-grandmother
including her teachings and knowledge of local medicines. Her submission included testimonies
regarding the effectiveness of Ms. Lagassie’s medicines.

The Enrolment Officer has no comments on photographs of family members or family oral
history.

3.4.d Expanding on Bonnechere Algonquin First Nation Documented support of the Lagarde-
Carriere Families as Algonquin Ancestors by Carole Turcotte

Ms. Turcotte provided a list of some descendants of the Carriére-Lagarde couple. These
descendants are documented in Enrolment Office records. The census records referenced are
included in the Enrolment Officer’s Report as well. Family oral history recounts how the families
were isolated and discriminated against because they were aboriginal people.

The Enrolment Officer has no comments on family oral history.

This sub-section also noted the descent of some individuals from the Langlois-Grenier family.
An application to add Francoise Grenier as an Algonquin ancestor was denied by Justice
Chadwick in May 2013 after hearing evidence from parties supporting her inclusion, those
objecting to her inclusion, and evidence compiled by the Enrolment Officer. The Langlois-
Grenier line has not been documented as being Algonquin.

3.4.e “The Squatters on Grand Calumet Island prior to 1845 — Author Mike Lamothe. The
Gateway To This Lagardes of Calumet Island Discussion” by Carole Turcotte

This section cites an article written by Mike Lamothe posted on Facebook regarding settlers on
Grand Calumet island. The article mentions a Joe Lagarde, with whom the author Mike Lamothe
conversed. The date of their conversation is not recorded so the Enrolment Officer is unable to
positively identify this person.?

Statements that Lagarde/Carriere descendants intermarried with people of Algonquin descent,

1 Joe Lagarde is a distant relative of the descendants of the Lagarde-Carriére line. He is a descendant of a parallel
line and is not in the line of direct descent of between the Lagarde-Carriere couple and individuals enrolled in
that line.
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if proven, do not in and of themselves show that the Lagarde/Carriére couple were Algonquin.

The Respondent identifies Thomas Lagarde dit St. Jean as a voyageur. The following records
indicate Thomas Lagarde dit St. Jean worked as a voyageur in 1835 (child’s baptism), 1837
(notary document), and 1843 (notary document), and in September 1845 (based on the
unverified Brunet letter).? Other records identify him as a day-labourer or labourer in 1829,
1830 (two), 1832, 1834 and 18513and as an “artisan” in 1842.% This suggests that Thomas
worked a variety of jobs from 1829 to 1851.

No new information related to the possible Algonquin descent of Thomas Lagarde is provided in
this section.

The Enrolment Officer has no comments on family oral history or the position taken by the
Bonnechere Community regarding the ancestry of Thomas Lagarde.

3.4.f History of Josephine Souliere (nee Turcotte) as told by Geoff Souliere

This section describes life experiences of Mr. Souliere’s ancestors including resource harvesting,
wage labour, use of medicines, and speaking a native language. The Respondent is a
descendant of the Lagarde-Carriere line.

The Enrolment Officer has no comments on family oral history.

3.4.g French-Algonquin Family Alliances

The section of the Respondent’s submission addressed connections between extended family
members of the Carriere-Lagarde ancestors and Indigenous people. Points specific to the
Carriere family are discussed in the reply report for ancestor Sophie Emilie Carriére (RIN
#11566).

Regarding Lagarde ancestors, the Respondent states that Thomas Poirier dit Deloge (born 1744,
RIN #31523), the maternal grandfather of ancestor Thomas Lagarde dit St. Jean, was born at
Oka on December 20, 1744. Both Indigenous and non-Indigenous families celebrated family
events at this church in this time period. The entry in the Oka mission registry does not describe
him as Indigenous. Some families who are recorded in the register are noted as Indigenous
usually identifying their nation (e.g., Iroquois, Algonquin, Nipissing, etc.). Others, who bear
French surnames, are not identified by ethnic origin.”> Being recorded in the Oka church registry
is not, in and of itself, an indication of Indigenous descent.

2 ALG-40281, ALG-40377, ALG-40503 cited in the Enrolment Officer’s Report, Section E.5 on page 16. The Brunet
letter and rough translation are documents ALG-40360 and ALG-40438.

3 ALG-40276 to ALG-40280, ALG-40379 cited in the Enrolment Officer’s Report, Section E.5 on page 16.

4 ALG-40372 cited in the Enrolment Officer’s Report, Section E.5 on page 16.

5 ALG-40570
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A genealogical chart showing the ancestors in Thomas Lagarde’s maternal line are found in the
Enrolment Officer’s Report (posted as Document 1) in Appendix 1c. The paternal line is shown
in Appendix 1b. The ancestral families are discussed in section E.2.

Note also that the parents of Thomas Poirier dit Deloge (born 1744, RIN #31523) were married
in 1743 at Ste. Anne de Bellevue. His father, Jacques Poirier Delage (RIN #31525), died and was
buried at St. Eustache in 1798. His mother, Marie Josephe Larocque Rocbrunne (RIN #31526),
was born at Pointe Claire in 1721 and died and was at buried at St. Eustache in 1799. Most
significantly, the ancestors of Thomas Poirier dit Deloge are shown to have immigrated from
France.

3.4.h “une robbe I'indienne” and marriage contract

This section is addressed in the reply report regarding ancestor Sophie Emilie Carriere (RIN
#11566).

3.4.i André Falmard — the Benefit of the Doubt

This section is addressed in the reply report regarding ancestor Sophie Emilie Carriére (RIN
#11566).

4. Document #5 — Initial Submission by D. Chaput

D. Chaput filed a nine-part submission to the Tribunal. The submission addresses both Thomas
Lagarde dit St. Jean (RIN #11565) and his spouse Emilie Sophie Carriere (RIN #11566). This reply
report comments on the content that applies to ancestor Thomas Lagarde dit St. Jean. The
content related to Sophie Emilie Carriere is addressed in a separate report.

The Enrolment Office comments on the content of the submission that is within the purview of
the Enrolment Officer to address and is germane to the issues before the Tribunal. The issues
raised by the Respondent are organized into sub-sections. Some individuals discussed by the
Respondent are identified by RIN numbers for ease of identification.

4.1 Respondent’s Submission 5.1 Algonquin Family Connections

4.1.a First Family Connection

This paragraph shows that a woman who descended from ancestors Jean Baptiste Kijikomanito
(RIN #6643), Joseph Pekakasiketch (RIN #6527), and Jacques Kamiskwabininch (RIN #7189)
married a man who descended from the subject ancestor and her husband (the Carriere-
Lagarde line). This marriage took place in Pembroke in 1952. The descendants of this couple
have Algonquin descent through the bride. This does not confer Algonquin descent on any
relatives or ancestors on the groom’s side. The Respondent indicated that she had social
connections to this family.

4.1.b Second Family Connection

This paragraph notes details of the life of Emmett Chartrand, born in 1915, a descendant of the
Carriere-Lagarde line. He is said to have spoken “French and Indian” and spent time resource
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harvesting in Algonquin Park. Stories about his life are recorded in a book entitled King of
Algonquin Park. Emmett was the great-great-grandson of Sophie Carriere and Thomas Lagarde.
Emmett married Katherine Mary Jocko in 1941 at Madawaska. Katherine Mary Jocko is a
descendant of ancestors Jean Baptiste Kijikomanito (RIN #6643), Denis Lavalley (RIN #4805),
Joseph Pekakasiketch (RIN #6527), Louis Nikik (RIN #7652), and Pierre Louis Constant Pinesi
(RIN #14169). The fact that Katherine Mary Jocko is of Algonquin descent does not confer
Algonquin ancestry on any relatives or ancestors on the husband’s side of the family. It does
show a connection between that family line and a known Algonquin family line whose
Algonquin ancestry is not subject to review.

This section includes statements from a descendant of Emmett Chartrand and Katherine Mary
Jocko that states she believes her father was Algonquin and spoke Algonquin with her mother.

The Enrolment Officer has no comments on photographs of family members or family oral
history.

The Respondent presented the couple David Lamure (RIN #2620) and Elisabeth Buckshot (RIN
#2272) who married in 1908. Both have been documented as descending from multiple
Algonquin Ancestors. Neither of them is known to have a familial connection to the Sophie
Carriere and Thomas Lagarde line.

The Enrolment Officer has no information on Robert Sarazin, also presented by the
Respondent, who married a woman from the Sophie Carriere and Thomas Lagarde line.

4.2 Respondent’s Submission 5.2 Chartrand Family Connections

4.2.a Chartrand Family

The Respondent’s submission begins with a text document describing the family tree of Emmett
Chartrand beginning with his great-great-grandparents who married in 1814. The information
shows that Emmett was the grandson of Elizabeth Felicite Turcotte, a granddaughter of Sophie
Carriéere and Thomas Lagarde.

The family information shows that Josephine Chartrand, purported to be a sister of Emmett’s
grandfather, who was not in the direct Carriere-Lagarde line, married Theophile Montreuil (RIN
#5283) in 1880. He was the son of Marie Kakwabit (RIN #7993) and grandson of Francgois
Kakwabit (RIN #6849). This family would be very distantly related to Emmett Chartrand.
Emmett Chartrand would be a first cousin once removed to the children of Josephine and
Theophile. This connection would be through a non-Algonquin line, as their common ancestors
would be Francois Chartrand and Eleanor Couturier, who have not been shown to have any
Indigenous heritage.

The marriage of Emmett Chartrand to Katherine Mary Jocko is cited by this Respondent. That
marriage is discussed above.

10
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Website downloads are provided by the Respondent to support the details of the family
narrative. The Enrolment Officer holds primary documents that show the familial relationships
between the individuals, which are as discussed above.

4.2.b Silent Community

The Respondent’s submission included an extract from a PowerPoint presentation entitled “The
Silent Community: A Case Study in Cultural & Heritage Presentation in the Ottawa Valley.” The
presentation identifies families who were displaced by construction at Deep River in the
Townships of Rolph, Buchanan, Wylie and Mckay. The area was known as the “Indian
Settlement.” An aerial photograph from 1938 had the names of families superimposed on Lots
4 and 5, which were within the “Indian Village.” One cabin is indicated as belonging Joseph
Lamure and Victoria Chartrand and another cabin is indicated as belonging to Moses Lamure
and Alexina Chartrand.

Alexina Blanche Chartrand (RIN #9515) is a second cousin once removed of Emmett Chartrand.
She is not in the Carriére-Lagarde direct line of descent. Alexina Blanche married Moise Joseph
Lamure (RIN #5345) in 1930. Moses Lamure was a descendant of documented Algonquin
ancestors such as Francois Kakwabit (RIN #6849) and Joseph Pekakasiketch (RIN #6527).
Emmett Chartrand would be the third cousin of the children of Alexina and Moses Lamure, as
their common ancestors were Ignace Chartrand and Mary Louise Meilleur, their great-great-
grandparents on a non-Algonquin line.

Victoria Chartrand and Joseph Lamure could be Alexina’s sister Clorince Victoria Chartrand and
her husband Joseph Adams Lukus (aka Joseph Adams, nephew to Alexina’s husband Moses),
but again their common ancestors would be Ignace Chartrand and Mary Louise Meilleur, their
great-great-grandparents on a non-Algonquin line.

4.3 Respondent’s Submission 5.3 Maps

A map of Grand Calumet Island and a map of Allumette Island were provided by the
Respondent. No source information was provided for the maps. They appear to be maps of the
subdivision of the islands with names of persons holding patents to lots noted; however, their
provenance, date, and purpose is not known.

The maps provided by the Respondent identify two “reserves”: one at Allumette Island labelled
“Somerset Reserve” and one at Calumet Island labelled “Reserve.” The Respondent submits
that these were areas meant to be set aside as Indian Reserves and that the Indigenous people
were expected to live there.

This is not correct. When townships were created and subdivided for sale certain lands were
“reserved” for public use or to support the clergy or schools.

11
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Allumette was subdivided by surveyor William Teasdale in 1845.8 His plan of Allumette Island
dated 1846 shows the “Somerset or Culbute Res.” with the notation “Res. For Public Works.”’
Teasdale’s field book notes that one of his tasks was to record the “position of the settlers
improvements and the division lines between them.” He stated there were about 120
habitations containing a population of about 900 people. He reported a request to have land
reserved for the church, which is shown on his plan as “St. Alphonse.”® The plan shows the
“Culbute or Somerset Reserve” as a 205 acre-parcel with a 5-chain strip along the shore for
public purposes and 155 acres “disposable.” This suggests a reserve for public purposes and
sale, and not an Indian Reserve.

The Enrolment Officer did not locate Teasdale’s field book and initial plans of the survey of
Calumet Island but the purpose of the reserve on that island would be the same.

The Enrolment Office located almost identical plans to the ones provided by the Respondent in
a collection of maps of Lanark and Renfrew Counties published in 1863. The maps were drawn
from existing surveys. On those maps, the reserve on Allumette Island is marked “government
reserve” and the lands of St. Alphonse Church are also shown. On Calumet Island the reserve is
simply marked “Reserve.”®

In addition to the evidence cited above that these reserves were standard reservations of land
made at the time of initial subdivision of the islands, there is no record of an intention to
establish a reserve for Indians on either of the islands around the time these lands were
subdivided. Beginning in 1834, the Algonquin and Nipissing chiefs petitioned for lands on
Allumette Island or above Calumet Island and the adjacent banks of the Ottawa River. After
nearly a decade of consideration, British authorities denied their request in 1842.1° The main
reason for denying the request was that the islands were already inhabited by numerous
squatters.

The Respondent noted that although the Lagarde-Carriére descendants were living on the
islands at the time no families by the name of Lagarde, Turcotte, or Clouthier appear on the
plan. They conclude that they do not appear on the plan because as Indigenous people they
were intended to live on the land shown on the islands as “reserves.” Furthermore, the
Respondent indicated that as Indigenous people they were barred from owning land and that
due to too many Iroquois raids the families packed up and moved up river.

There are several issues with those statements:
e Asexplained above, the land marked “reserve” on the islands were not intended to be
Indian Reserves but were being reserved for public use or to support the clergy or
schools;

ALG-40565
ALG-40566
ALG-40565
ALG-40567
10 ALG-90257

0 0 N O

12
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e Indigenous people were not prevented from buying land at this time but were
prevented from claiming free homestead lands being granted to settlers. The land on
the islands were not free homestead grants but locations taken up by squatters;

e The Iroquois raids up the Ottawa River pre-dated the early 1800s, being predominantly
a feature of the so-called Beaver Wars of the mid-seventeenth century (1600s);

e While some of the family records show that Lagarde-Carriere descendants used the
church on the island,*! they were clearly living on the mainland. For example, Thomas’
widow Sophie Laguarde dit St. Jean and her family were recorded as living in Litchfield
Township, Pontiac on the 18512 and 1861'3 census returns. In 1871, Sophie was
enumerated in Clarendon Township in South Pontiac living with an adult son and next
door to another adult son.'* Her daughter Sophie St. Jean was recorded as living with
her husband Xavier Turcotte in the Waltham Township, Pontiac in 1861° and at
Petawawa in 1871.16

e An 1856 Crown Land Department plan of Grand Calumet Island names heads of families
occupying lots on Grand Calumet Island and the status of their payment for the lots
being paid in full or partial payments. The information was recorded as of November 21,
1867. Names include #36 — J Turcotte, 1 payment Lot 6 Range 3 N1/2 of 6. It is unknown
if this map pre- or post-dates the maps supplied by the Respondent. On the
Respondent’s plan this lot is shown as unoccupied.®’

4.4 Respondent’s Submission 5.4 Carriére Family

The section is addressed in the reply report regarding ancestor Sophie Emilie Carriere (RIN
#11566).

4.5 Respondent’s Submission 5.5 Josephte Jamme Dite Carriére Wedding

The section is addressed in the reply report regarding ancestor Sophie Emilie Carriere (RIN
#11566).

4.6 Respondent’s Submission 5.6 Father Brunet History — Letter to Bishop

The Respondents request that the letter from Brunet to Bishop Bourget!® and the Urgul St. Jean
marriage document?® be “re-evaluated by a qualified and unbiased handwriting expert.” The
Respondents advance the argument that the documents support each other and give credence
to their authenticity.

11 See chart summarizing the marriage and death records for Thomas and Sophie’s children in Enrolment Officer’s

Report, Section E.4 pages 11 to 12.

12 ALG-40379 cited in the Enrolment Officer’s Report, Section E.3 page 10, Section .4 page 13.

13 ALG-40397 cited in the Enrolment Officer’s Report, Section E.4 page 13.

14 ALG-403909 cited in the Enrolment Officer’s Report, Section E.4 page 13.

15 ALG-40413 cited in the Enrolment Officer’s Report, Section E.4 page 13.

16 ALG-40415 cited in the Enrolment Officer’s Report, Section E.4 page 13.

17 ALG-40569

18 The Brunet letter and rough translation are documents ALG-40360 and ALG-40438 cited in the Enrolment
Officer’s Report, Section E.5 16.

19 ALG-40437 cited in the Enrolment Officer’s Report, Section E.6 pages 18-19.
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The Enrolment Officer notes that the Enrolment Office’s genealogist made written inquiries to
the Archives of Saint-Sulpice, the Archives of the Missionnaires Oblats de Marie Immaculée
(Archives Deschatelets-NDC), and the Archives for the Diocese of Montreal asking if they had
this letter in their possession. All three archives replied they could not find the letter. Note that
the Montreal Archives holds letters written by Bishop Bourget but did not have any incoming
correspondence from Father Brunet. Attempts to locate this letter are complicated by the fact
that it does not bear a date and many archives file their documents by date.

The Respondent attached the Dictionary of Canadian Biography (DCB) entry on Father
Alexandre-August Brunet and provided a brief outline of his work. Brunet’s career is
summarized in greater detail in the Enrolment Officer’s Report (posted as Document 1), Section
E.6 based on the DCB biography.?° Note that Brunet was a secular priest who belonged to the
Oblate order; no documentation indicates that he was attached to the Sulpician mission at Lake
of Two Mountains, whose priests belonged to the Sulpician order.

The Respondents attach a new document being an extract of the 1965 annual report of the
Archives of the Province of Quebec, which contained a section on the 1845 correspondence of
Bishop Ignace Bourget. The article notes the Bishop’s interest in the mission in the upper
Ottawa River, especially with reference to their mission in the lumber industry workcamps.

The Respondent did not address the inconsistencies or anomalies in the document as outlined
in section E.5 of the Enrolment Officer’s Report (posted as Document 1) such as Lagarde being a
mason (macgon) or a fugitive under sentence of death.

As it presently stands, the Enrolment Officer is of the view that the Brunet letter is “unverified”
as the Enrolment Office only has an electronic copy of this document and has not been able to
determine where the letter originated and where the original copy of this document might be
archived. Also, the letter itself includes information that appears to be inconsistent with other
historical documents.

The Enrolment Officer has not been provided with any handwriting analysis related to this
document.

4.7 Respondent’s Submission 5.7 Marie Emilie Carriere

The portion of this section regarding Thomas Lagarde’s spouse is addressed in the reply report
regarding ancestor Sophie Emilie Carriere (RIN #11566).

In this section, the Respondent states that Thomas Lagarde dit St. Jean was a fugitive under
sentence of death and that he was a “courier du bois,” which accounts for the fact that there

20 ALG-40361 cited in the Enrolment Officer’s Report, Section E.6 page 18.
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are no fur trade records for him, such as a contract.?! As noted above in section 3.4.e. while
most extant records identify Thomas Lagarde dit St. Jean as a day-labourer or labourer in 1829,
1830 (two), 1832, 1834 and 1851%2and as an “artisan” in 1842,2 He is noted as a voyageur in
1835 (child’s baptism), 1837 (notary document), 1843 (notary document), and circa September
1845 (based on the unverified Brunet letter).?*

No evidence has been found to substantiate the statement that Thomas Lagarde was a fugitive
under a sentence of death. A Notary document dated March 4, 1843 indicates that Thomas
Lagarde dit St. Jean was in prison in Montreal from February 11 of that year, after a warrant
was issued for his arrest due to non-payment of a debt. The debt was paid and Thomas was
subsequently released from prison. The document was witnessed by Edouard Spenard, an Inn-
keeper, along with the notary Stephen MacKay.?°> No other notarial records have been located
from this date onwards that described Thomas as having any further legal troubles.

The Respondent provided an unsourced listing for a man named Paul St. Jean who had a
contract for two years from May 31, 1815 to go to Michilimackinac to work for a trading
company. He was said to have been from the parish of St. Eustache. Paul St. Jean and his son
Paul St. Jean are both named on the contract summary.

Paul Lagarde dit St. Jean (RIN #14681) is the father of ancestor Thomas Lagarde dit St. Jean (RIN
#11565). He is documented as being born in Pierrefonds, Quebec in 1771, and dying and being
buried at St. Eustache in April 1843. He was a witness at Thomas and Sophie’s wedding in 1827.
His son Paul Lagarde dit St. Jean was born in April 1795 at St. Eustache and married there in
1823. Given the date of the contract if these are the same men, Paul Sr. would have been 44
years old; his son Paul would have been 20, so it is possible that these are the same men.

4.8 Respondent’s Submission 5.8 Lagarde dit St. Jean Family Connections

This section of the Respondent’s reply refers to Joseph Lagarde “who was well known on Grand
Calumet.” The Respondents state that Joe Lagarde was a medicine man and an Algonquin Pipe
Carrier.

Joseph (1935-2006) was the son of Hector Lagarde and Irene Derouin. According to the
Respondent, Joseph Lagarde is related to subject ancestor Thomas Lagarde dit St. Jean. They
had common ancestors Antoine Lagarde dit St. Jean Sr. (1736-1794, RIN #31487) and Marie
Elizabeth Mondoux (1735-1815, RIN #31488). This couple had sons Antoine Lagarde Jr. (RIN
#31703) and Paul Lagarde dit St. Jean (1771-1843, RIN #14681). The subject ancestor Thomas

21 Courier du bois is a term loosely used. Many men who worked on contracts for small fur trade companies were

referred to by this term. The logic does not follow. For example, the Respondent supplied a listing for a two-
year contract listing for Michel Carriere with a small trading company.

22 ALG-40276 to ALG-40280, ALG-40379 cited in the Enrolment Officer’s Report, Section E.5 page 16.

23 ALG-40372 cited in the Enrolment Officer’s Report, Section E.5 page 16.

24 ALG-40281, ALG-40377, ALG-40503 cited in the Enrolment Officer’s Report, Section E.5 page 16. The Brunet
letter and rough translation are documents ALG-40360 and ALG-40438.

25 ALG-40377, ALG-40382 (translation) cited in the Enrolment Officer’s Report, Section E.3 page 9.
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descended from Paul Lagarde dit St. Jean, while Joseph descended from his brother Antoine
Lagarde. Thomas (1801-abt 1851) was the grandson of Antoine Lagarde dit St. Jean Sr. (RIN
#31487) and Marie Elizabeth Mondoux (RIN #31488).

The Enrolment Office has no data on Joseph Lagarde (1935-2006). However, based on relative
dates the family lines descending from these two brothers (which date from the 1770s) the
family connection would be very distant. The unsubstantiated family tree supplied by the
Respondents indicates that Joseph Lagarde was the grandson x5 of the common ancestors
Antoine Lagarde dit St. Jean Sr. (1736-1794, RIN #31487) and Marie Elizabeth Mondoux (1735-
1815, RIN #31488). The intermarriages in that line have not been examined for possible
Algonquin ancestors for Joseph Lagarde.

Note that the descendants from the parallel line descending from Antoine Lagarde to the man
named Joseph Lagarde use “Lagarde” as the family name. The descendants of the line
descending from Antoine Lagarde dit St. Jean Sr. (1736-1794, RIN #31487) to the subject
ancestor and his descendants use the surname “St. Jean.” See for example Thomas and
Sophie’s daughter Sophie St. Jean who married Francois Xavier Turcotte.

4.9 Respondent’s Submission 5.9 Conclusions

In this section the Respondent states that census records only show indigenous people who
lived on reserves and at trading posts, and that church records do not identify Indigenous
status.

The Enrolment Officer disagrees with this position. While census records obscure or
misrepresent the identity of the many Indigenous people, census records throughout the
Ottawa Valley from 1861 to 1921 have noted many Indigenous families who live in remote
households, small clusters of Indigenous families in different townships, and those living within
non-Indigenous settlements. These individuals have been recorded by many terms used at the
time to indicate their Indigenous status including: “Indian,” Algonquin, French breed, etc.,
which enables experienced researchers and genealogists to locate and identify indigenous
families.

Church records, particularly those from the 19% century very often recorded people as “Indian,”
Algonquin, or Nipissing. This is particularly true for records generated by the mission at Oka
(over 2,500 are held in the Enrolment Office database), the mission at Allumette Island, and at
numerous churches throughout the valley.

The Enrolment Office has no comment on the concerns expressed by the Respondent’s on
correspondence and actions in 2022-23.
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Appendix A: Supporting Document List for Thomas Lagarde dit St. Jean

The documents in this table are listed by ALG number and appended in Appendix B.

Document | Document | Document Reference

Number Date Description

ALG-40565 | 1845-05-01 | William Teasdale BAnQ Quebec E21, S60, SS3, PA27 Carnet A27, ile Allumette William Teasdale 1845-05-01,
Fieldbook Letter Accessed March 23rd 2023 https://www.bang.qc.ca/

ALG-40566 | 1846-00-00 | Plan of the Township | BAnQ Quebec E21, S555, SS1, SSSS1, PA.9A Plan of the Township of Allumette Island William
of Allumette Island Teasdale 1846

ALG-40567 | 1863-00-00 | “County Map Lanark | “County Map Lanark and Renfrew.” The Ontario Historical County Maps Project, accessed
and Renfrew” March 24 2023 at

https://maps.library.utoronto.ca/hgis/countymaps/lanarkrenfrew/Lanarkrenfrew_merge.jpg

ALG-40569 | 1867-11-21 | “Plan of the Ontario, Department of Crown Lands. "Plan of the Township of Grand Calumet Island."
Township of Grand [1987]. LAC Call Number G3453.P66:3G7G46 1867 .057
Calumet Island”

ALG-40570 | 1744-12-20 | Baptism of Thomas "Registre de la paroisse I'Annonciation-de-la-Bienheureuse-Vierge-Marie de Oka, 1721-
Poirier 1786," F.M. 8 G 21 Vol. 1 [Institute Drouin ISBN 2-554-03341-2 RNCD477]

ALG-90257 | 1942-07-12 | Proceedings of a LAC RG 10 Vol. 6 File 39556-58 Reel C-10,998

Council between the
Algonquins and
Nipissings of the Lake
of the Two
Mountains, Captain
Ducharme,
Interpreter and
James Hughes,
Superintendent,
Indian Department
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Appendix B: Supporting Document Package for Thomas Lagarde dit St. Jean

The documents are organized by ALG document number.
They appear in the same order as in the list in Appendix A and are bookmarked for ease of reference.
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NIPISSINGS AT LAKE OF TWO MOUNTAINS. JULY 12, 1842

After the usual ceremonies on such occasions, Francis Ka-on-di-no-ketch, a Nipissing Chief got
up and addressed me on behalf of the Two Tribes in nearly the following words:

Brother,

ALG-90257

We have been consulting amongst ourselves on the words of our new Father the Governor
General, which you delivered to us yesterday ---concerning the proposed Settlement on Isle
aux Allumettes, which Spot forms part of our hunting grounds & on which our ancestors had
long ago pitched upon to settle, when nothing could be procured from the Chase. But it
appears that now our Father does not think it expedient to assist his red Children the
Nipissingues and Algonquins. Therefore, we shall trouble him no more on that subject.

Brother,

We know your good heart, and we have long experienced the great interest you have always
taken in the Welfare of your Indian Bretheren and we are persuaded, you will render us this last
service which we are about to demand of you. We have sent many Memorials, Brother, to our
late Fathers, the different Governors of Canada. Fair promises were always made us but were
never performed. You know Brother that formerly we were rich and independent but now we
are miserably poor and pitiful. Had we the means of paying our expenses we (the Chiefs) would
go and throw ourselves at the feet of Our Father the Governor General, and open our Hearts to
him. But our poverty and the fear of not being admitted to his presence (as was the case with
our late Father his predecessor) is the reason that we have this day sent for you, to explain to
you, The wishes of your Bretheren the Nipissingues and Algonquins & to pray of you to repeat
them to our new Father.

First---Brother, tell our Father, that although we have not had the pleasure of seeing Him, we
have heard a great deal about him. We are told that he is just, a good charitable man and that he
will render the same Justice to his red as to his white children. That Brother is all we ask for.

Secondly---tell him that we his red children the Nipissingues and Algonquins are destitute of the
common necessaries of life, that we have no one but him (our Father) to look up to for
Protection, and that we are persuaded from what we hear of him that he will take pity on us, and
see that justice be rendered us.

Thirdly---Tell him, that we beseech Him to have reference to our Joint Petition on the 9th March
1840 to the address of our late Father His Predecessor and to his short answer thereto dated
23rd April same year (which we have in our possession) in which he promises to render us
Justice, and we have not the least doubt, that had the Great Master of Life spared him, He would
have keeped his word. - But He Being no more, we pray of our new Father, to take these same
writings into his most serious consideration. For we are certain, and have every reason to
expect that when he has carefully examined them, He will find that the demand, of His red
children the Nipissingues and Algonquins are just & moderate. Tell him that we only ask to be
treated in the same manner as our bretheren of Upper Canada who receive an annual
remuneration for such part of their hunting grounds, as have been assumed by Government, in
conformity to the Proclamation of Our Good Father of Blessed Memory---King George the Third-
-- dated St. James's 7 October 1763 of which we have a copy given to our Tribes by our late
Father Sir William Johnson.

Fourthly---We pray our Father not to lose sight of the clandestine manner in which we have
been treated by the Mississaugas (as represented in our above mentioned Petition) as reported
to us by the late Chief Superintend of Indian Department at Toronto, Col. Givins, and that our
Father will be pleased to enquire into the business.

LAC RG 10 Vol. 6 File 39556-58 Reel C-10998




Fifthly---We also beseech our Father to be pleased to cast his Eye on the long list of squatters
(sent to our Father His Predecessor by his order 27th April 1841) and to be pleased to
acquiesce to our demands, in our Petition above alluded to, on this subject.

Sixthly---We pray of our Father, to be pleased after he has carefully examined our said Petition &
to have the goodness to give his red children the Nipissingues and Algonquins de detailed
answer thereto, which we are persuaded, from our moderate & Just demands can be but
favourable to us. We ask what has been granted to all Tribes of Indians in similar cases and what
we are Justly Entitled to.

Brother---This is all we have to say. Tell our Father that the wishes and Prayers of his Red
Children the Nipissingues and Algonquins are the Great Master of Life may long protect Him and
His family and assist him in all his undertakings.

[Document No. 1842/07/12]

LAC RG 10 Vol. 6 File 39556-58 Reel C-10998

ALG-90257




ALG-90257

3153 ik

) - : ;
-, e . . i
e ‘./(/’-’V"f(/""”’i ‘-/’/’/ i . /‘)ﬂ(,///(/ﬁ S 2t }r("ua.c(f//%//fz/

(.1// ’J"( ,I//f/ fl’(r"/(-f.no //‘-/
///‘ ’/f f/fﬂ ///‘f (7'}- V7Y

} f$ 7(///7//71 7z, /4.‘?-: -W % /f/n
,/7 bergs Sred one” T A M,/ // Sf L

//////"/ //'/ - o 7:5«” . i “ /(//PZI/:‘!:’( /41‘(‘#(4« 3 ./I% i
14 ///v’/r A//“/« /a?’/rz// 1 W;//V)fff‘/;«pﬂ/ (‘-%ﬂﬁz{' e P Ar
|

;(‘/r(r ALk e /rtd/)

m/a?/«/)’_ el e D s st e

oyl i = — -
////( 200 0re 7. ; Jffz/ix/éamzfd/u A A ,,7,,4/__
ﬂ? S tag e, ///”/ . //)/(.74.'./

/ T > {7//,6;;%— ///dzzw C’.’-’{”L‘)'-'/J:n st ﬂL/

(/ i /uwfu 4 c_// ' :d,-; r’/ 7 ﬂfc:’td/m;,;_@;;’tu/«////a on. i
/ .
/ //,r e 0. I«raou-7—o~o i /,',,///‘,4;/’, 7 /,%/ /J”“,”‘ (é/ 5
/&’1/4 f/’f/r ///-”I/(/ #/—/% (:4.; )//f(/:ﬂ/ﬂ! e ald” /I:’vr I?‘t/

/7/"/’}'71— ('///’44/ //i‘l/ P @.«/ﬂ %’*’n//r.w P d//a/r"/

7-/ /rl/;zn’r,y Ap1% M

-

[y : ,
o B
// ,/;141 é:m/ (’.(/Hd//o/-f//ﬂ!r EMBEY ///_

Gurselitig oo T /#V/-‘f// & (hcat //51141/ L/’ﬂ%” P e /(qé/w@ﬁv‘/ =

f ceare /"rr( l.r!/f,,r/ P /r//lp/fc .z,(//x) ser Gt epied vec

/ {'Mr‘ 7 Irl//;-r/ﬁ
,7;;/;/ ”‘/"J—t&(d&ﬁ&.«rwtw/w{ Off/( rum//"/g,,,;,,,, ,77/"‘_, i ,,,/ A

.//#/;em;//m’/?/z/aﬁ Q' .cr///7 Loze s ol & £7e Lt Sied £ e

//Nuu/r‘] }f;«c(/éf:; i ﬂ/{(f &> % 2. ./fﬁ—ﬁf(??,‘/”‘ ///%//11/
f74f/‘/// 7 44 e /v 4/0—(«4"(/'5/ oY /:z /(;/v’;’e,é’ r//

/5//./// /’/ o1t et ptest Frees) CF ,:,/,7“,¢,<_ lviess 4411/72{%/(
a?r / erlecan f ?’_77 /z.f/ /QJ etV /44)5‘67’(44,/./ e //4( s ",/’//; A
G ///4/,5 Seerts U/Lﬂ%“r//ﬁ’fc r// /'-w_ b Pl S F e 70
r’}-hﬂ(r/ o /,4 oy 6//1//;’“’7:__ i
£

/’6/‘(4 /{/:'4‘{ ”/«‘/,/4;44// / e g% f el Pﬂ 4"‘/701:/(’ //‘rz’/

%w’r / / ¢4/gld+uxil¢/r¢; %f:/%xfﬂ(i/—wtéﬂdic ;

e(/n/rrf,/ /}T/ 5 2a. t/;,,,,, // //Ar,/ﬁ,:y/ pm-'t ,/4,//‘«1_ Aﬁé‘( {(y_t/

//”,4 /ﬂ ,,,1,/,/{”,,,,,/1, /,/p //zrl’( 41{4/\-/ /4:‘///:/ //é) /Mﬂflt///ca/
///}’4/// ke e ¢ %l/ (Ve

1/7441144 ~ /’// aa, J

LAC RG 10 Vol. 6 File 39556-58 Reel C-10998



ALG-90257

3154 o

l '/..//’.- %! vaf-/;i/-rm'f/ Ates retrr eredl e 4"4’*7%-%;‘ T S

- (2//:, i 7”4, c/;:-’: ;/,//( wcaid ‘?4’!;{4/;,074 % ’lijnm P ,.,/,:,/_cy’/n,,»,,(,,‘ A e D)
ke P Frtans g it Ao //;//{;J_/A/;/ﬁ/’f.y"t-/Jr/,f/r.fzc //{14f‘ 12000
#

&ﬁf g1 fBrtoil. At 7 e e (,/ /‘;/'//!( /J///«-,;ff:-«’;/rh S g ;/./'/
ol ://(//,;/n/mn/f. J////jha ! /’//‘0/1?1‘1/44111(/1‘61 49 /fa 07\"/:5'(44{.‘?/
..‘//,(Z/-""’" "-2--%""5/-///¢/%A At een 1.7 ’/’7/47 o {ﬂ%ﬂd‘(,d

//:"j//(_ /,’{/{/‘ 1’/ 7274 /,7«1’//(/ ﬁ’tlfﬂé'/g/;f’a/// ;;L:o'y ebrie g 6/ e o

%/zt/ﬁ c:;‘\f,%(;b(’j‘/;/ "3"‘&""‘" 0""/!44.14"1’4'/&44 f/ﬂ%:44/ Hee l"-/

40 4 7 .

- r'rzﬂ/(; o %f,‘? Py 4 P dﬂ;/r;zﬂ( "‘? .w44pﬂ5%: /(.0—47/ Prens” /au
freth. /74‘;(/ 7 ;Q/J/M-.ujaf(x frer Sehce st Soe, @'aasv.‘,/dr L o =
I N =
e/ Yhe ge /%.4 /fszzw Cor?S g 77 preiescn /b /],;,_/Zoﬂtc- iy

P

e drw,ﬂf/m/m{..{‘/f, f%(ﬁu,n 5//0?1/ bf%////rd%/ Vs Legr,

. ol 7 - J = . = .’// ] = .// »

pe J}“(,%{d‘fﬂt/fj’/g %fr’/{ //l:;/z[.l dfo;zr//?/‘r/; 674}1,//(,,44 91 /o /J‘(.’(Z//

N s pd
_ / /:m ki /f«//f(/ S L litn Mo Gt rets) Fadthea™—
/I'/r ’

o lacas

w5/ /g;"ﬂ??/’fy‘; 2l ot kU‘/\fmJ% AT T H e is /1’;,//—’.-/ /91.«44/24.“/'
Sirent ;/: /;/;f‘/df/l‘r t/ Ma//" %4,;,,, S Rage Fecprt /r'( Pt
Loitnbowgs P orale i rre 7ol 1 S Ve S a 7’4}4##’/ /~S
(-J%:fofr‘r/;f"/_x;/E -'/4"«4{./”’/4'-4 Gras” //% Y i ’,//:Awo/r,/c /;, o piim A ’

SoZrai £i Baseot o t5 Lo 1t oA lrtginr, L T
O Breitierc iy e /5/,//16/2,,/(;/”/:;

t//ew,»///;' B &.&;/’/ /%af/ﬁﬂ(/ﬂ/‘z//%.d P4 %4’:/;’?/4&4///; //f%/,,,,,,
el (77 /; £7¢ 7//:/;44 At -fﬂu./?/f){' .;s//df, ?‘ﬂ::?/;,wauq.f //’147.20?’:";7:*46
4 ,{/{;-},ﬁﬁf(//r;/%uy,’;; o—;f_(_/{,’,/ 9/,,,, fk@, oS [/,”: i /
o Z&»/Z’xyé ér’/m /ém/&u ol dow FE it vi gt Hoor 9% tem -
ey’ Gorne il o /}/Av,/ Za# % //-qu,l 2 fra ///% e Pl NI,
/ /% o ,///d, proerl e/ 74@7’2‘«/}; A/ phent plie px col A —

‘%}‘r /9 _ f?/o;: /; % ’%/", A et g, 4 der ,,:,4 . %y;‘r’ __,/_;,T%—,,w/

/ . ) - F 2z ;
ﬂ;'{/’/"""{,“”,‘:’—ﬂ””' Y00ars df-z;ﬁb-t/p//z‘% /7411144-/////'%{'
/ s
V/ N/ /’,,/,(,75_ ?/ Gunr 1o7c Cevdilirin ,%) Dt byt foor—Crsnnd Ay
s

LAC RG 10 Vol. 6 File 39556-58 Reel C-10998



ALG-90257

. 3155 4 -1
o }}d e ot Sy it Ve Bl Wil /"/M‘ﬁ%ﬂm’f/«/ S

% /////:i!/;/ ke r(my{r,‘. ﬂr//%dfr' ;'(67;1/‘;14'4. xﬂ‘%;’(/ % /;4‘;/4' AL |
/;_mrwﬂ/f,:l Zd ud7x";£;,‘,//' A },//// /%fuf/r/d»w'/— e Aoz /7 f’:(//t«ﬁ/;‘—
Fint Jrt? ke Cmnnd Hsadim s .,4/;//4/’/,,_@,/,!/ enre, 2
g Lol ,é,",,,/,// ‘///u/fﬂ&/%d ///1/7‘4//.__ 4/// /%/ /gf/w' Lo
vt m,.%,.«,,/,, frapircoss Grndepne 75 vt be A Hoae .
M'Mr.:,/ L1 Zozn o, /4/'«//;—%/;' 1208 7 1% awd/M/‘mt‘
Qs %’K‘z—/ 04@214%“.,;/ sl kﬂ.ﬂ{- Gentents ae riprene Sl COLing S :
el ese }%/ /g’ffr.r I’ch///ﬂ(/.fd:ﬂ/l'm/%»rl na/%/}':a‘:.— 7 )g’ A
e /f%/(z';; P s AT fr{w: cern il £ }/q’ A'Cr.o// f"%/.a?‘f//t/
S /ﬂf/g’//ﬂ; I:r(zj Gorert % ﬂ ot 7111/}4.: :erZ/f//’;g/J’h(‘M//;ZcT .
sz ek e ts S A o1 é Cra AV fr (e 1'(‘71-/‘_»‘(//4«;72"_.’—
220, /'}M. IRATET g oy ﬂou/ﬁﬂrlz':/f/fvé ,'/%f/zw 5&2&: arl oy ’
[ e Beanve oy Prtginitdd ;)/'{'4441,«74/,7/ m} /w"m’ae// /@4—4/* '
/ﬂuw-kﬁm IJ.-.(/.’.?f’I(}U/f‘”ﬂI Cers %alc “-//i’.w.,/p, LoD y"
‘fom;!/w,ﬁ cr” wh (’m/a?na il o MA‘(/-" ,LMMZZ;L P
,ﬁ (e % z‘n—fﬁ’@}f}zﬂzw /,/ "/J/"/: dﬂ,&g///m};wayq /4:741( g/"“w P
5/7’4':' c’l’/v ;;: 4"‘/[4 ﬂf;f/»/f;-’/( J / s d ‘ / ‘4(’/;)7/(” / 7/;(/ 5 3/
/] ity e v’ %/f/ “ ‘/f alens [ diaent Dtr Loro _ /’} Lirem
/;/- ;_’/")’//Z g S e gt Lt £ Vo itgn ’?75‘/;;,- o

Ve il _ /7/5%44”.;/.(// /’c/w @’%‘I/’;M‘fz*/ P ék -'5"/ //7% Cr/fffft‘t o
= 47/,_ A na//f.a/!,f:f/ P2 //M)I(}/’/ﬂ(— / Q{tﬂ/{,—"‘élﬂt;/é:‘(—,:’/lnm T/A

4

Na

2 //;,{:, Zt{ 7 oy %14%41411412'_{/ the e i o ppargatotsreet )
Lﬁ/_/‘/—.//_(ﬂﬁffj ﬂ%{/xxﬁ}(//ﬂﬁ/;d ﬁ}ﬁ oA /’/r/xéf/:t-"z;/«//v}:/f"//
7 pe ol &,WA{;,,,@, o S Y rad e f?a‘f / Qf'{/m‘ff-ﬁef — :
//?;m( et viorn _0}/’14’2 ron ///r/{-/ v //Z/,.-Mﬁ? 4""’7/ “; I tanty
v, 4;/7 e fr_
\////f/7 _ Affr/f";/;r%.up« L7 (B 30 i eph ot /E(/ Gcsr ’:‘fﬁ Cazs Lozy
gf' /L 497 . z ./7// "illers, / Lo S o Oap roditsom
/ /},(,M;, Gty iy trntrnis /;244;?//%4//' A
/4/(/‘,,14;/4- ﬂr!fz/uiﬁu/’£WM B crae o, s . erg oSt oo, .
teclgre pilVice 4'-".//11 _ {m///t;' %’f’/éf(-/:._ =

- ’,,//a-g//}'f —

s

'

LAC RG 10 Vol. 6 File 39556-58 Reel C-10998



ALG-90257

RERPREC 3156 | i
.%4//{/ '__ /)////z/ /4)4"7 ﬂ/ /"'fm- W;\:;%mf'f //f////’wflﬂ/ &, z:‘y (/

%J e«a%@ R Lo g7 f 7 ,c.(/ Fces” /;u,a/ﬂfi //_//;;:_ q/_(_/

- 7 ) : ‘o 2
O franie S /'quuff-é ot Moy piert! Ohieiloricsn’

- 4 . / R =
QT le /et A;/me',‘r/ oy ﬂa“/a/é’f/ 230 4424714 el efaxtlee{  amanctope,
% /A e doy Iy ////’/?/ Wx/’ﬂﬂ ce tenl L

‘ rogentade & i 7 Plagren s é’lw—r/ K/ 4:/7’/!/?”"’”@
‘ 2% sow 1, e /L S Qf”'ﬂ/ fecore e phoomdend Ao zlp o

@9‘(’/%) {‘/@/gfd/;(ﬂ/ 74 M/ﬁfbf//_(ﬂ/p z e !’Wﬂ%{/}{?’@/ﬁ-
ey /xi/,éu@ o oI5 i oF 5

. 7
y oz s a/!///// %mJ/o Sy QI lp Ber s 0 for gh

a7 FZe f?ﬁ//oj aurrol /ﬂ‘&/ cerdy & /(%4 44,1;/444‘%% .

CJ% j}z’?"/”” ny Z’/J/fod Vi i o & cerzad f{/’q/ (’/ )/,i, A
o~ Y . o § - .
Z %g/ arton. 7 o 00y, Forny Dretie” om,,

L . i .
Corr Z C’/’z?/u/,f,__ Cinnl Bl s 7 ,}%9&; prn P
} ,%J ﬁ/l-f,&‘(ﬂ’(Z/://////yﬁ/ '_‘_ _./ o . .
/{,

ey Y /A ﬂ/jm,/r) G e Vot frorietoctoza ¢ &

(e siely ol futhorke «V{y Cttanee” o cle pre S /&,:/‘_ | )

/% y;/l—f}'//b‘/éj/%. v SBetney T y 2yl @.,,4‘,//,,,,,‘2, sa il
| T it gy G, '/,,ﬁ/x//c,,;{@;& O grccin oSy

) ; - %{{ 4/5/2’ Vo T
; | it preail—
i . ~ .- j gy};z;\
. p (/{(4A(;%ﬂa ! - 7;.%(/(44@/
A2 27 VA | fﬂ}{m(é‘“’/’ A
" Gl
45/4:»4/
%/}%,, o
254570l Lo A

-\

———

LAC RG 10 Vol. 6 File 39556-58 Reel C-10998



	1. Introduction
	2. Document #2 – Initial Submission by D. Scott
	3. Document #3 – Initial Submission by L. Clouthier
	3.1 Respondent’s Introduction (Respondent’s page 2)
	3.2 Part One: Thomas St. Jean dit Lagarde and Emilie Sophie Carrière and Descendants (Respondent’s pages 2 to 5)
	3.3 Part Two: Lagarde/Carrière Descendants Would Like to Expand the Conversation (Respondent’s pages 5 to 8)
	3.4 Supplementary Documents (Respondent’s pages 9 to 19)
	3.4.a Lagarde-St Jean Defense, Emmett Godin, January 2023
	3.4.b Family History Submitted by Ronald Romain Sr.
	3.4.c Jane Lagassie
	3.4.d Expanding on Bonnechere Algonquin First Nation Documented support of the Lagarde-Carrière Families as Algonquin Ancestors by Carole Turcotte
	3.4.e “The Squatters on Grand Calumet Island prior to 1845 – Author Mike Lamothe. The Gateway To This Lagardes of Calumet Island Discussion” by Carole Turcotte
	3.4.f History of Josephine Souliere (nee Turcotte) as told by Geoff Souliere
	3.4.g French-Algonquin Family Alliances
	3.4.h “une robbe l’indienne” and marriage contract
	3.4.i André Falmard – the Benefit of the Doubt


	4. Document #5 – Initial Submission by D. Chaput
	4.1 Respondent’s Submission 5.1 Algonquin Family Connections
	4.1.a First Family Connection
	4.1.b Second Family Connection

	4.2 Respondent’s Submission 5.2 Chartrand Family Connections
	4.2.a Chartrand Family
	4.2.b Silent Community

	4.3 Respondent’s Submission 5.3 Maps
	4.4 Respondent’s Submission 5.4 Carrière Family
	4.5 Respondent’s Submission 5.5 Josephte Jamme Dite Carrière Wedding
	4.6 Respondent’s Submission 5.6 Father Brunet History – Letter to Bishop
	4.7 Respondent’s Submission 5.7 Marie Emilie Carriere
	4.8 Respondent’s Submission 5.8 Lagarde dit St. Jean Family Connections
	4.9 Respondent’s Submission 5.9 Conclusions
	Appendix A: Supporting Document List for Thomas Lagarde dit St. Jean
	Appendix B: Supporting Document Package for Thomas Lagarde dit St. Jean
	ALG-40565
	ALG-40566
	ALG-40567
	ALG-40569
	ALG-40570
	ALG-90257





